
 

     
    
      
 
        

 
 
 

Agenda 
LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER & SEWER AUTHORITY 

REGULAR MEETING 
August 31, 2022 at 8:00 am 

Watershed Education Center (Vitale Park) 
Lakeville, NY 14480 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Approval of Agenda 

 
3. Approval of Minutes  

 
July 20, 2022 – Regular Meeting 

 
4. Reports 

 
a. Financial Report–July 2022 

i. Approval of Financial Report 
ii. Approval of Expenditures 

 
b. Operation/Capital Report 

 
c. Executive Director’s Report  

 
5. Other Business 

 
#2022-27 RESOLUTION CLASSIFYING THE LEICESTER/YORK REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY 

EXPANSION PROJECT IN LIVINGSTON COUNTY AS A TYPE I ACTION, 
ESTABLISHING LEAD AGENCY AND DETERMINING THE SIGNIFICANCE OF SUCH 
ACTION, AND DIRECTING THAT THE NEGATIVE DECLARATION BE PUBLISHED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SEQRA 

 
#2022-28 RESOLUTION TO APPROVE (A) SUBMITTING AN APPLIATION FOR A GRANT AND 

(B) A TWELFTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND 
DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL WATER FACILITIES, PUMP STATIONS, WATER 
STORAGE TANKS, WATER MAINS AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS 

 
#2022-29 AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SIGN AN INTERMUNICIPAL 

AGREEMENT WITH PARTICIPATING MUNICIPALITIES – LEICESTER/YORK 
REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY EXPANSION PROJECT 

 
#2022-30 AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SIGN AN INTERMUNICIPAL 

AGREEMENT WITH LIVINGSTON COUNTY – LEICESTER/YORK REGIONAL WATER 
SUPPLY EXPANSION PROJECT 

 
#2022-31 RESOLUTION CLASSIFYING THE LAKEVILLE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

PHOSPHORUS REMOVAL PROJECT AND GROVELAND WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
1997 D’Angelo Drive 

PO Box 396 
Lakeville, NY 14480 

Phone: (585) 346-3523 
   Fax: (585) 346-0954 

   TTY NY: (800) 662-1220 
 
 

 



 

PLANT IMPROVEMENTS IN LIVINGSTON COUNTY AS TYPE II ACTIONS, 
ESTABLISHING LEAD AGENCY AND DETERMINING THE SIGNIFICANCE OF SUCH 
ACTION, AND DIRECTING THAT THE NEGATIVE DECLARATION BE PUBLISHED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SEQRA 

 
#2022-32 RESOLUTION TO APPROVE (A) SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION FOR GRANTS AND 

(B) A THIRTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION FOR THE INSTALLATION OF A 
NEW UV DISINFECTION SYSTEM AND WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
IMPROVEMENTS AT THE GROVELAND WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT AND A 
NEW CHEMICAL FEED SYSTEM AT THE LAKEVILLE WASTEWATER TREATMENT 
PLANT 

 
6. Communications 

 
7. Adjournment 

 
Next Regular Meeting: Wednesday, September 21, 2022 @ 8 am  
 

 
All attachments and reports referenced above may be found at  

http://www.co.livingston.state.ny.us/lcwsa.htm 
Go to Board meetings tab / current agenda. 

http://www.co.livingston.state.ny.us/lcwsa.htm


 1 

 
 
 
 
 

Members Attending:  M. Falk, D. Fanaro D. Higgins, M. McKeown, T. Saunders, B. Ceci 
 
Excused:  S. Beardsley  
  
  
Others attending:  J. Molino (Executive Director), L. Monaghan (Executive Deputy Director), M. Kosakowski, R. 

Lewis (Principal Account Clerk), C. Murphy (Secretary) and J. Campbell (Attorney), E. Wies 
(Engineer), 4 residents of Cleary Road. 

 
Call to Order   8:00 a.m. 

4 residents of Cleary Road, Livonia, NY were present and inquiring about water service and the process of 
obtaining it.  Residents were referred to attend the Town of Livonia board meeting to discuss it further. 

 
  8:10 a.m.  We adjourned to move our cars. 
Call to Order 8:15 a.m.  
 
Approval of Agenda 

Motion:  T. Saunders moved, and D. Higgins seconded to approve the agenda as presented.  Carried 
unanimously. 

 
 
Approval of Minutes: 
 

June 15, 2022 - Regular Meeting 
Motion: T. Saunders moved, and M. Falk seconded to approve the regular board meeting minutes dated June 15, 
2022.  Carried unanimously.   

 
 

July 20, 2022 regular meeting minutes will be approved August 31, 2022 
 
 
Financial Report – June 2022:   R. Lewis reviewed the Financial Report with the Board (on file with Secretary).   

Motion:  D. Fanaro moved, and M. Falk seconded to approve the June 2022 Financial Report. Carried 
unanimously. 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Motion:  T. Saunders moved, and D. Higgins seconded to approve paying Total Capital & Operating 
expenditures of $331,092.04.  Carried unanimously.   

 
Motion: D. Fanaro moved, and D. Higgins seconded to approve paying utilities & miscellaneous expenditures of 
$486,196.75.  Carried unanimously. 

 
 
Operations and Capital Report  
M. Kosakowski reviewed the Operations and Capital Reports with the Board (on file with Secretary). 

Motion:  M. Falk moved, and T. Saunders seconded to approve the Operations and Capital Report.  Carried 
unanimously. 

 
 
Other Business 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Date:   July 20, 2022 
 
 
 
 



 2 

#2022-23 RESOLUTION TO SET THE SALARY RANGE FOR THE UTILITY BILLING 
COORDINATOR POSITION 
Motion: D. Fanaro moved, D. Higgins seconded to approve resolution #2022-23, Approving the 
resolution to set the salary range for the Utility Billing Coordinator position.  Carried 
unanimously.   
 
 

#2022-24 RESOLUTION TO SET THE SALARY RANGE FOR THE CONFIDENTIAL 
SECRETARY TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR POSITION 
Motion: D. Higgins moved, T. Saunders seconded to approve resolution #2022-24, Approving the 
resolution to set the salary range for the Confidential Secretary to the Executive Director 
position.  Carried unanimously.   
 
 

#2022-25 RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN 
OF LIMA AND LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY 
FOR THE TOWN OF LIMA WATER DISTRICTS No. 1, 2, 3 and 4. 
Motion: D. Fanaro moved, T. Saunders seconded to approve resolution #2022-25, Approving a 
lease agreement between the Town of Lima and Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority 
for the Town of Lima water districts No 1, 2, 3 and 4.  Carried unanimously.   

 
 
#2022-26 SEQRA NOTICE OF INTENT TO SERVE AS LEAD AGENCY FOR THE 

LEICESTER/YORK REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY EXPANSION 
Motion: M. Falk moved, D. Higgins seconded to approve resolution #2022-26, Approving the 
SEQRA notice of intent to serve as lead agency for the Leicester/York regional water supply 
expansion.  Carried unanimously.   

 
 
 

Communications/Executive Director Report 
 

• Presentation on Leicester/York Water Supply Expansion Project.  Still not response from 
Village of Leicester.  Drafting IMA’s is the first step of many steps. 

• Name confusion with Authority vs Livingston County.  Looking to make changes to LCWSA 
website and have one of our own. 

• Trevor to move position to maintenance 10/1/22 
• 2 staff members assigned to capital project meter replacement program. 
• Reschedule regular 8/17/22 meeting to 8/31/22. 
  

 
Adjournment – 9:18 a.m. 
 Motion: M. Falk moved, T. Saunders seconded, Carried unanimously.   

 





















































Customer Work Orders Staff completed 138 workorders; up 42  from last month.

UFPO Staff completed 240 stakeouts; up 89 from last month. 

PM Maintenance All PM maintenance was completed.
Sampling & Testing All sampling and testing were completed. We had a Total 

coliform sample at the Groveland Lower Tank site. We 
resampled and the results were negative.

Water taps Staff completed 3 water taps. Staff also switched a service 
line over from a 4'' main to a 8'' Main.

Main Line Valve repair Staff replaced bolts on a 8 inch valve on East Lake Rd.

Restoration Staff repaired areas do to leaks and taps.

Hydrant Repair Staff repaired 2 hydrants one on Richmond Mills Rd and 
one on Gypsy Lane Mt Morris.

Meter Replacement Program LCWSA and 
Leicester Meter Replacements.

Staff has replaced 157 meters since June 1st and 38 have 
been in the Town of Leicester. Things are going well.

Sewer Work Program

Sewer Taps and Repairs Fineline Pipeline did 1 sewer tap. 

Manhole Inspections Staf  has been working on manhole inspections in the 
Lakeville area.

LCWSA OPERATIONS REPORT                                                                             

August 31, 2022
Water and Sewer Work Program

Water Work Program



31085 DOCCS WSP  

No change- still averaging between 110,000 and 135,000 gpd. 

31131 Countywide Water System Improvements - Phase 1 (ARS Water Main Ext + Grov. Sta Inter)
Chlorine System is up and running at the ARS tank site. Randsco has been in working on the 
pnchlist items. Still waiting on a few electrical Items. Also We had pre construction meetings 
for contract 2A and Contract 5. 2A They are waiting on chlorine equipment. Looking to start 
in November. Contract 5 will be starting approximately 2nd week of September.

31138 Comprehensive SCADA System Evaluation
Staff and GHD met to review Scada system design. Will be meeting again on September 
2nd to prioritize sites that should be done 1st.

31140 I&I Study (Smoke Testing + San Sewer Cleaning & Televising)
Smoke testing has been completed and no major issue were found. Waiting on the report at 
this time.

31142 Lakeville WWTP Upgrades - Phase 2 + UV
Blue Heron has been completed the restoration around the UV building and the new 
manhole that was installed. They have installed the new gas piping for the flame arrestor. 
They also have been working on the window replacement. The new drives for the main 
pumps have been set in place. Pump replacement is scheduled for the 1st week in August. 
The gutters and soffits have been installed on the sludge storage building.

LCWSA CAPITAL PROJECTS REPORT                                                                             

August 31 , 2022



 
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION #2022-27 
 

RESOLUTION CLASSIFYING THE LEICESTER/YORK REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY 
EXPANSION PROJECT IN LIVINGSTON COUNTY AS A TYPE I ACTION, ESTABLISHING 

LEAD AGENCY AND DETERMINING THE SIGNIFICANCE OF SUCH ACTION, AND 
DIRECTING THAT THE NEGATIVE DECLARATION BE PUBLISHED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH SEQRA 
 

WHEREAS, the Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority (“Authority”) has proposed a 
regional water project (“Project”) designed to supply potable water to the communities impacted by the 
Retsof Salt Mine collapse, including the Towns of Mt. Morris, Leicester, Geneseo, Avon and York.  The 
Project will also have the ability to provide potable water to the Villages of Mt. Morris and Leicester; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Project includes the following primary components: 

• Installation of a new pump station in the Town of Lima that will connect to the City of 
Rochester transmission mains. 

• Installation of a new water storage tank in the Town of Livonia. 
• Installation of new water transmission mains in the Towns of Lima, Livonia, Avon, 

and Geneseo, running east to west from the City of Rochester transmission main to the 
Genesee River. 

• Installation of new water transmission mains running along River Road in the Towns 
of York and Leicester. 

• Installation of a new water booster pump station in the Town of York. 
• Installation of a new water storage tank in the Town of Leicester.   
• Installation of new transmission mains along Rt 36 in the Towns of Groveland and Mt. 

Morris. 
• Upgrades to the Maple Beach pump station in the Town of Groveland; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority previously communicated its 

intention to serve as Lead Agency for purposes of review under the New York State Environmental 
Quality Review Act (“SEQRA”” of the proposed Project/action and circulated a Lead Agency Notice 
along with Part 1 of the Full Environmental Assessment Form (“FEAF”) and other supporting 
documentation to all Involved Agencies.  Those agencies have consented to the Livingston County Water 
and Sewer Authority’s request to be designated Lead Agency for the required environmental review under 
SEQRA; and now therefore be it, 

 
RESOLVED, that the Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority declares itself to be Lead 

Agency for the Project and therefore responsible for complying with the procedural and substantive 
requirements of SEQRA and ultimately determining whether an Environmental Impact Statement is 
required in conjunction therewith; and be it further   

 
RESOLVED, that based upon the review by the Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority 

Board of Directors (“Board”) of Part 1 of the FEAF and the requirements of 6 NYCRR §617.4, the Board 
hereby finds and determines that the proposed action is a “Type I Action” under SEQRA; and be it further  



RESOLVED, that in reviewing Parts 1, 2 and 3 of the FEAF, the Board has taken the requisite 
“hard look” at the proposed Project/action as it relates to the criteria 6 NYCRR §617.7 (c) and when 
compared against those criteria has determined: 

 
(i) there will not be a substantial adverse change in existing air quality, ground or surface water 

quality or quantity, traffic noise levels; a substantial increase in solid waste production; a 
substantial increase in potential for erosion, flooding, leaching or drainage problems; 

(ii) there will not be large quantities of vegetation or fauna removed from the site or destroyed as 
the result of the proposed Action; there will not be substantial interference with the movement 
of any resident or migratory fish or wildlife species as the result of the proposed Action; there 
will not be a significant impact upon habitat areas on the site; there are no known threatened 
or endangered species of animal or plant, or the habitat of such species; or, are there any other 
significant adverse impacts to natural resources on the site of the planned improvements; 

(iii) there are no known Critical Environmental Area(s) on the site of the planned improvements 
which will be impaired as the result of the proposed Action; 

(iv) the overall density of the site of the planned improvements is not inconsistent with the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan land use recommendations; 

(v) the site of the planned improvements is will not negatively impact an identified archaeological 
sensitive area;  

(vi) there will not be an increase in the use of either the quantity or type of energy resulting from 
the proposed Action;   

(vii) there will not be any hazard created to human health;  
(viii) there will not be a change in the use of active agricultural lands that receive an agricultural use 

tax exemption or that will ultimately result in the loss of ten acres of such productive farmland; 
(ix) there will not be a larger number of persons attracted to the site of the planned improvements 

for more than a few days when compared to the number of persons who would come to the 
site absent the Action; 

(x) there will not be created a material demand for other Actions that would result in one of the 
above consequences; 

(xi) there will not be changes in two or more of the elements of the environment that when 
considered together result in a substantial adverse impact; and 

(xii) there are not two or more related Actions which would have a significant impact on the 
environment; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that the proposed action, if undertaken, is not one that may include the potential 
for at least one significant adverse environmental impact, nor will it result in an actual significant 
adverse or negative environmental impact; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that because of the above findings and determinations (and those specific and 

detailed findings as set forth in Part 2 of the FEAF which are incorporated herein by reference), no Draft 
Environmental Impact Statement need be prepared; and be it further  

 
RESOLVED, that this determination constitutes a negative declaration for purposes of SEQRA 

and it has been prepared in accordance with Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law; and be it 
further 

 



RESOLVED, a copy of this resolution shall be placed on file in the office of the Livingston County 
Water and Sewer Authority, where the same shall be available for public inspection during business hours 
and such notice of negative declaration shall be filed in such offices, posted in such places and published 
in such manner as shall be necessary to conform to the requirements of SEQRA. 

 
 
 

August 31, 2022 
Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
Moved By: 
Seconded By: 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
 
 

































Page 1 of 10

Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 2 - Identification of Potential Project Impacts

Part 2 is to be completed by the lead agency.  Part 2 is designed to help the lead agency inventory all potential resources that could 
be affected by a proposed project or action.  We recognize that the lead agency s reviewer(s) will not necessarily be environmental 
professionals.  So, the questions are designed to walk a reviewer through the assessment process by providing a series of questions that 
can be answered using the information found in Part 1.  To further assist the lead agency in completing Part 2, the form identifies the 
most relevant questions in Part 1 that will provide the information needed to answer the Part 2 question.  When Part 2 is completed, the 
lead agency will have identified the relevant environmental areas that may be impacted by the proposed activity.   

If the lead agency is a state agency and the action is in any Coastal Area, complete the Coastal Assessment Form before proceeding 
with this assessment. 

Tips for completing Part 2: 
Review all of the information provided in Part 1.
Review any application, maps, supporting materials and the Full EAF Workbook.
Answer each of the 18 questions in Part 2.
If you answer “Yes” to a numbered question, please complete all the questions that follow in that section.
If you answer “No” to a numbered question, move on to the next numbered question.
Check appropriate column to indicate the anticipated size of the impact.
Proposed projects that would exceed a numeric threshold contained in a question should result in the reviewing agency
checking the box “Moderate to large impact may occur.”
The reviewer is not expected to be an expert in environmental analysis.
If you are not sure or undecided about the size of an impact, it may help to review the sub-questions for the general

question and consult the workbook.
When answering a question consider all components of the proposed activity, that is, the whole action .
Consider the possibility for long-term and cumulative impacts as well as direct impacts.
Answer the question in a reasonable manner considering the scale and context of the project.

1. Impact on Land
Proposed action may involve construction on, or physical alteration of,  NO  YES 
the land surface of the proposed site.  (See Part 1. D.1)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - j.  If “No”, move on to Section 2.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may involve construction on land where depth to water table is
less than 3 feet.

E2d

b. The proposed action may involve construction on slopes of 15% or greater. E2f

c. The proposed action may involve construction on land where bedrock is exposed, or
generally within 5 feet of existing ground surface.

E2a 

d. The proposed action may involve the excavation and removal of more than 1,000 tons
of natural material.

D2a 

e. The proposed action may involve construction that continues for more than one year
or in multiple phases.

D1e 

f. The proposed action may result in increased erosion, whether from physical
disturbance or vegetation removal (including from treatment by herbicides).

D2e, D2q 

g. The proposed action is, or may be, located within a Coastal Erosion hazard area. B1i 

h. Other impacts: _______________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________ 

FEAF 2019



Page 2 of 10

2. Impact on Geological Features
The proposed action may result in the modification or destruction of, or inhibit 
access to, any unique or unusual land forms on the site (e.g., cliffs, dunes,   NO  YES 
minerals, fossils, caves).  (See Part 1. E.2.g) 
If “Yes”, answer questions a - c.  If “No”, move on to Section 3.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. Identify the specific land form(s) attached: ________________________________
___________________________________________________________________

E2g

b. The proposed action may affect or is adjacent to a geological feature listed as a
registered National Natural Landmark.
Specific feature: _____________________________________________________  

E3c 

c. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________ 

3. Impacts on Surface Water
The proposed action may affect one or more wetlands or other surface water  NO  YES 
 bodies (e.g., streams, rivers, ponds or lakes).  (See Part 1. D.2, E.2.h)  
If “Yes”, answer questions a - l.  If “No”, move on to Section 4.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may create a new water body. D2b, D1h 

b. The proposed action may result in an increase or decrease of over 10% or more than a
10 acre increase or decrease in the surface area of any body of water.

D2b 

c. The proposed action may involve dredging more than 100 cubic yards of material
from a wetland or water body.

D2a 

d. The proposed action may involve construction within or adjoining a freshwater or
tidal wetland, or in the bed or banks of any other water body.

E2h

e. The proposed action may create turbidity in a waterbody, either from upland erosion,
runoff or by disturbing bottom sediments.

D2a, D2h 

f. The proposed action may include construction of one or more intake(s) for withdrawal
of water from surface water.

D2c 

g. The proposed action may include construction of one or more outfall(s) for discharge
of wastewater to surface water(s).

D2d 

h. The proposed action may cause soil erosion, or otherwise create a source of
stormwater discharge that may lead to siltation or other degradation of receiving
water bodies.

D2e 

i. The proposed action may affect the water quality of any water bodies within or
downstream of the site of the proposed action.

E2h

j. The proposed action may involve the application of pesticides or herbicides in or
around any water body.

D2q, E2h 

k. The proposed action may require the construction of new, or expansion of existing,
wastewater treatment facilities.

 D1a, D2d 



Page 3 of 10

l. Other impacts: _______________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________ 

4. Impact on groundwater
The proposed action may result in new or additional use of ground water, or   NO  YES 
may have the potential to introduce contaminants to ground water or an aquifer. 
(See Part 1. D.2.a, D.2.c, D.2.d, D.2.p, D.2.q, D.2.t) 
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h.  If “No”, move on to Section 5. 

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may require new water supply wells, or create additional demand
on supplies from existing water supply wells.

D2c 

b. Water supply demand from the proposed action may exceed safe and sustainable
withdrawal capacity rate of the local supply or aquifer.
Cite Source: ________________________________________________________

D2c 

c. The proposed action may allow or result in residential uses in areas without water and
sewer services.

D1a, D2c 

d. The proposed action may include or require wastewater discharged to groundwater. D2d, E2l 

e. The proposed action may result in the construction of water supply wells in locations
where groundwater is, or is suspected to be, contaminated.

D2c, E1f, 
E1g, E1h 

f. The proposed action may require the bulk storage of petroleum or chemical products
over ground water or an aquifer.

D2p, E2l 

g. The proposed action may involve the commercial application of pesticides within 100
feet of potable drinking water or irrigation sources.

E2h, D2q, 
E2l, D2c 

h. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________

5. Impact on Flooding
The proposed action may result in development on lands subject to flooding.  NO  YES 
(See Part 1. E.2)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - g.  If “No”, move on to Section 6.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may result in development in a designated floodway. E2i 

b. The proposed action may result in development within a 100 year floodplain. E2j

c. The proposed action may result in development within a 500 year floodplain. E2k

d. The proposed action may result in, or require, modification of existing drainage
patterns.

D2b, D2e 

e. The proposed action may change flood water flows that contribute to flooding. D2b, E2i, 
E2j, E2k 

f. If there is a dam located on the site of the proposed action, dam E1e 



Page 4 of 10

g. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________ 

6. Impacts on Air
 NO  YES The proposed action may include a state regulated air emission source.

(See Part 1. D.2.f., D 2 h D.2.g)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - f.  If “No”, move on to Section 7.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. If  the proposed action requires federal or state air emission permits, the action may
also emit one or more greenhouse gases at or above the following levels:

i. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide (CO2)
ii. More than 3.5 tons/year of nitrous oxide (N2 )
iii. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon equivalent of perfluorocarbons (PFCs)
iv. More than .045 tons/year of sulfur hexafluoride (SF6)
v. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide equivalent of

hydrochlorofl urocarbons (HFCs) emissions
vi. 43 tons/year or more of methane

D2g 
D2g 
D2g 
D2g 
D2g 

D2h 

b. The proposed action may generate 10 tons/year or more of any one designated
hazardous air pollutant, or 25 tons/year or more of any combination of such hazardous
air pollutants.

D2g 

c. The proposed action may require a state air registration, or may produce an emissions
rate of total contaminants that may exceed 5 lbs. per hour, or may include a heat
source capable of producing more than 10 million BTU s per hour.

D2f, D2g 

d. The proposed action may reach 50% of any of the thresholds in “a” through “c”,
above.

D

e. The proposed action may result in the combustion or thermal treatment of more than 1
ton of refuse per hour.

D2s 

f. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

7. Impact on Plants and Animals
The proposed action may result in a loss of flora or fauna.  (See Part 1. E.2. m.-q.)  NO  YES 
If “Yes”, answer questions a - j.  If “No”, move on to Section 8.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s)

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may cause reduction in population or loss of individuals of any
threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the Federal
government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.

E2o

b. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by
any rare, threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the federal
government.

E2o

c. The proposed action may cause reduction in population, or loss of individuals, of any
species of special concern or conservation need, as listed by New York State or the
Federal government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.

E2p

d. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by
any species of special concern and conservation need, as listed by New York State or
the Federal government.

E2p



Page 5 of 10

e. The proposed action may diminish the capacity of a registered National Natural
Landmark to support the biological community it was established to protect.

E3c 

f. The proposed action may result in the removal of, or ground disturbance in, any
portion of a designated significant natural community.
Source: ____________________________________________________________

E2n

g. The proposed action may substantially interfere with nesting/breeding, foraging, or
over-wintering habitat for the predominant species that occupy or use the project site.

E2m 

h. The proposed action requires the conversion of more than 10 acres of forest,
grassland or any other regionally or locally important habitat.
Habitat type & information source: ______________________________________
__________________________________________________________________

E1b

i. Proposed action (commercial, industrial or recreational projects, only) involves use of
herbicides or pesticides.

D2q 

j. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

8. Impact on Agricultural Resources
The proposed action may impact agricultural resources.  (See Part 1. E.3.a. and b.)  NO  YES 
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h.  If “No”, move on to Section 9.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may impact soil classified within soil group 1 through 4 of the
NYS Land Classification System.

E2c, E3b 

b. The proposed action may sever, cross or otherwise limit access to agricultural land
(includes cropland, hayfields, pasture, vineyard, orchard, etc).

E1a, Elb 

c. The proposed action may result in the excavation or compaction of the soil profile of
active agricultural land.

E3b

d. The proposed action may irreversibly convert agricultural land to non-agricultural
uses, either more than 2.5 acres if located in an Agricultural District, or more than 10
acres if not within an Agricultural District.

E1b, E3a 

e. The proposed action may disrupt or prevent installation of an agricultural land
management system.

El a, E1b 

f. The proposed action may result, directly or indirectly, in increased development
potential or pressure on farmland.

C2c, C3, 
D2c, D2d 

g. The proposed project is not consistent with the adopted municipal Farmland
Protection Plan.

C2c 

h. Other impacts: ________________________________________________________



Page 6 of 10

9. Impact on Aesthetic Resources
The land use of the proposed action are obviously different from, or are in  NO  YES 
sharp contrast to, current land use patterns between the proposed project and
a scenic or aesthetic resource.  (Part 1. E.1.a, E.1.b, E.3.h.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - g.  If “No”, go to Section 10.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. Proposed action may be visible from any officially designated federal, state, or local
scenic or aesthetic resource.

E3h

b. The proposed action may result in the obstruction, elimination or significant
screening of one or more officially designated scenic views.

E3h, C2b 

c. The proposed action may be visible from publicly accessible vantage points:
i. Seasonally (e.g., screened by summer foliage, but visible during other seasons)
ii. Year round

E3h

d. The situation or activity in which viewers are engaged while viewing the proposed
action is:
i. Routine travel by residents, including travel to and from work
ii. Recreational or tourism based activities

E3h

E2q,

E1c 

e. The proposed action may cause a diminishment of the public enjoyment and
appreciation of the designated aesthetic resource.

 E3h 

f. There are similar projects visible within the following distance of the proposed
project:

0-1/2 mile
½ -3  mile
3-5   mile
5+    mile

D1a, E1a, 
D1f, D1g 

g. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

10. Impact on Historic and Archeological Resources
The proposed action may occur in or adjacent to a historic or archaeological  NO  YES 
resource.  (Part 1. E.3.e, f. and g.)

If “Yes”, answer questions a - e.  If “No”, go to Section 11.
Relevant 

Part I 
Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur

E3e 

b. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous
to, an area designated as sensitive for archaeological sites on the NY State Historic
Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory.

E3f

c. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous
to, an archaeological site not included on the NY SHPO inventory.
Source: ____________________________________________________________

E3g



Page 7 of 10

d. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

e.
If any of the above (a-d) are answered “

”, continue with the following questions to help support conclusions in Part 3:

i. The proposed action may result in the destruction or alteration of all or part
of the site or property.

ii. The proposed action may result in the alteration of the property’s setting or
integrity.

iii. The proposed action may result in the introduction of visual elements which
are out of character with the site or property, or may alter its setting.

E3e, E3g, 
E3f

E3e, E3f, 
E3g, E1a, 
E1b
E3e, E3f, 
E3g, E3h,
C2, C3 

11. Impact on Open Space and Recreation
The proposed action may result in a loss of recreational opportunities or a  NO  YES 
reduction of an open space resource as designated in any  adopted
municipal open space plan.
(See Part 1. C.2.c, E.1.c., E.2.q.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - e.  If “No”, go to Section 12.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may result in an impairment of natural functions, or “ecosystem
services”, provided by an undeveloped area, including but not limited to stormwater
storage, nutrient cycling, wildlife habitat.

D2e, E1b 
E2h,
E2m, E2o, 
E2n, E2p 

b. The proposed action may result in the loss of a current or future recreational resource. C2a, E1c, 
C2c, E2q 

c. The proposed action may eliminate open space or recreational resource in an area
with few such resources.

C2a, C2c 
E1c, E2q 

d. The proposed action may result in loss of an area now used informally by the
community as an open space resource.

C2c, E1c 

e. Other impacts: _____________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________

12. Impact on Critical Environmental Areas
The proposed action may be located within or adjacent to a critical  NO  YES 
environmental area (CEA).  (See Part 1. E.3.d)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - c.  If “No”, go to Section 13.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quantity of the resource or
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.

E3d

b. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quality of the resource or
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.

E3d

c. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 



Page 8 of 10

13. Impact on Transportation
The proposed action may result in a change to existing transportation systems.  NO  YES 
(See Part 1. D.2.j)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - .  If “No”, go to Section 14.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. Projected traffic increase may exceed capacity of existing road network. D2j 

b. The proposed action may result in the construction of paved parking area for 500 or
more vehicles.

D2j 

c. The proposed action will degrade existing transit access. D2j 

d. The proposed action will degrade existing pedestrian or bicycle accommodations. D2j 

. The proposed action may alter the present pattern of movement of people or goods. D2j 

. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

14. Impact on Energy
The proposed action may cause an increase in the use of any form of energy.  NO  YES 
(See Part 1. D.2.k)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - e.  If “No”, go to Section 15.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action will require a new, or an upgrade to an existing, substation. D2k

b. The proposed action will require the creation or extension of an energy transmission
or supply system to serve more than 50 single or two-family residences or to serve a
commercial or industrial use.

D1f, 
D1q, D2k 

c. The proposed action may utilize more than 2,500 MWhrs per year of electricity. D2k 

d. The proposed action may involve heating and/or cooling of more than 100,000 square
feet of building area when completed.

D1g 

e. Other Impacts: ________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________

15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light
The proposed action may result in an increase in noise, odors, or outdoor lighting.  NO  YES 
(See Part 1. D.2.m., n., and o.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - f.  If “No”, go to Section 16.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may produce sound above noise levels established by local
regulation.

D2m 

b. The proposed action may result in blasting within 1,500 feet of any residence,
hospital, school, licensed day care center, or nursing home.

D2m, E1d 

c. The proposed action may result in routine odors for more than one hour per day. D2o 



Page 9 of 10

d. The proposed action may result in light shining onto adjoining properties. D2n 

e. The proposed action may result in lighting creating sky-glow brighter than existing
area conditions.

D2n, E1a 

f. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

16. Impact on Human Health
The proposed action may have an impact on human health from exposure  NO  YES 
to new or existing sources of contaminants.  (See Part 1.D.2.q., E.1. d. f. g. and h.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - m.  If “No”, go to Section 17.

Relevant  
Part I 

Question(s) 

No,or 
small 

impact 
may cccur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action is located within 1500 feet of a school, hospital, licensed day
care center, group home, nursing home or retirement community.

E1d

b. The site of the proposed action is currently undergoing remediation. E1g, E1h 

c. There is a completed emergency spill remediation, or a completed environmental site
remediation on, or adjacent to, the site of the proposed action.

E1g, E1h 

d. The site of  the action is subject to an institutional control limiting the use of the
property (e.g. easement deed restriction)

E1g, E1h 

e. The proposed action may affect institutional control measures that were put in place
to ensure that the site remains protective of the environment and human health.

E1g, E1h 

f. The proposed action has adequate control measures in place to ensure that future
generation, treatment and/or disposal of hazardous wastes will be protective of the
environment and human health.

D2t 

g. The proposed action involves construction or modification of a solid waste
management facility.

D2q, E1f 

h. The proposed action may result in the unearthing of solid or hazardous waste. D2q, E1f 

i. The proposed action may result in an increase in the rate of disposal, or processing, of
solid waste. 

D2r, D2s 

j. The proposed action may result in excavation or other disturbance within 2000 feet of
a site used for the disposal of solid or hazardous waste. 

E1f, E1g 
E1h

k. The proposed action may result in the migration of explosive gases from a landfill
site to adjacent off site structures.

E1f, E1g 

l. The proposed action may result in the release of contaminated leachate from the
project site. 

D2s, E1f, 
D2r 

m. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 



Page 10 of 10

17. Consistency with Community Plans 
 The proposed action is not consistent with adopted land use plans.    NO   YES 
 (See Part 1. C.1, C.2. and C.3.)   
 If “Yes”, answer questions a - h.  If “No”, go to Section 18.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action’s land use components may be different from, or in sharp 
contrast to, current surrounding land use pattern(s).  

C2, C3, D1a 
E1a, E1b 

b. The proposed action will cause the permanent population of the city, town or village 
in which the project is located to grow by more than 5%.  

C2

c. The proposed action is inconsistent with local land use plans or zoning regulations. C2, C2, C3 

d. The proposed action is inconsistent with any County plans, or other regional land use 
plans. 

C2, C2 

e. The proposed action may cause a change in the density of development that is not 
supported by existing infrastructure or is distant from existing infrastructure. 

C3, D1c, 
D1d, D1f, 
D1d, Elb 

f. The proposed action is located in an area characterized by low density development 
that will require new or expanded public infrastructure. 

C4, D2c, D2d 
D2j 

g. The proposed action may induce secondary development impacts (e.g., residential or 
commercial development not included in the proposed action) 

C2a 

h. Other: _____________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________ 

18. Consistency with Community Character 
  The proposed project is inconsistent with the existing community character.   NO   YES 
  (See Part 1. C.2, C.3, D.2, E.3) 

If “Yes”, answer questions a - g.  If “No”, proceed to Part 3.
Relevant 

Part I 
Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may replace or eliminate existing facilities, structures, or areas 
of historic importance to the community. 

E3e, E3f, E3g 

b. The proposed action may create a demand for additional community services (e.g. 
schools, police and fire)  

C4

c. The proposed action may displace affordable or low-income housing in an area where 
there is a shortage of such housing. 

C2, C3, D1f 
D1g, E1a 

d. The proposed action may interfere with the use or enjoyment of officially recognized 
or designated public resources. 

C2, E3 

e. The proposed action is inconsistent with the predominant architectural scale and 
character. 

C2, C3 

f. Proposed action is inconsistent with the character of the existing natural landscape.  C2, C3 
E1a, E1b 
E2g, E2h 

g. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________ 



SEQR Long Form Part 2  
 
1.  Impact on Land 
 
Land disturbances will be within road right of ways, municipally owned property and easements.  
The anticipated construction schedule assumes that the project will be completed in Phases, 
between installation of water mains, construction of pump stations, and erecting of water storage 
tanks.  Construction is anticipated to take place beginning in August 2024 through December 
2026. 
 
Throughout construction, short term impacts (excavation, exposed bare soils) will be mitigated 
by implementation of erosion and sediment control measures and post-construction restoration. 
These mitigation measures will be implemented throughout the entirety of construction of the 
project.  The implementation of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for each phase 
of the project will further reduce potential impacts.  
 
In some areas of construction, vegetation will be removed through clearing and grubbing 
methods in order to install water main.  Post construction restoration procedures will be used to 
mitigate potential increased erosion in these locations.    
 
3. Impact on Surface Water 

Work for the project may occur within or adjacent to Federal or State regulated waterbodies.  
Water mains that will be laid out adjacent to roadways located above a stream will be 
directionally bored underneath the stream to avoid any disturbance.   

Locations of proposed pumping stations and water storage tanks will be selected to avoid 
impacts to wetland areas so as to avoid any change from existing conditions.  Temporary impacts 
to the NYSDEC-regulated 100 foot wetland buffer are anticipated during construction of each 
phase of the project.  No direct impact to the adjacent state regulated freshwater wetland are 
anticipated.   

Prior to construction, the owner will submit a Joint Application for Permit (Nationwide Permit 
Preconstruction Notification) to the United States Army Corps of Engineers to obtain 
authorization.  The Joint Application will also be submitted to the NYSDEC.  

Stormwater runoff generated during construction will be managed in accordance with SPDES 
General Permit for Stormwater Discharge from Construction Activity.  

8.  Impact on Agricultural Resources 

Construction of the water main is anticipated to take place within public road right of ways for 
the majority of the project.  However, based on site features and existing utilities, some locations 
may require construction to take place within easements within Agricultural districts and 
adjacent to working crop fields. A Preliminary and Final Notice of Intent will be submitted to the 



Department of Agriculture and Markets for the portions of the project located within the 
Agricultural District.   

10. Impact on Historic and Archeological Resources  

Impacts to historic and archeological resources were considered by reviewing the New York 
State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation (SHPO) online Cultural Resource 
Information System (CRIS).  Based on a review, ‘Westerly’ was identified as a listing on the 
State or National Register of Historic Places in the vicinity of the project.  The site is not located 
within the affected construction area and no impact by the project is anticipated.   

Based on review of CRIS, the project area is located with multiple areas designated by SHPO as 
“sensitive for the presence of archeological resources.”  The majority of the project will occur 
within existing road right of ways or municipally owned property that have been previously 
disturbed from installation of existing utilities.  Documentation of each phase of the project will 
be submitted to SHPO to evaluate the specific impact of each construction activity and to ensure 
the project will have no effect upon any historic or cultural resources in the area. 

14. Impact on Energy  

The project will result in minimal increase in electrical demand to power the pumping stations.  
No significant adverse impacts are anticipated.   

15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light 

Construction activities for each phase will generate temporary increases in local background 
noise.  These impacts will be short term, lasting only during construction phase activities.  No 
noise impacts from operations are anticipated.   

New lighting will be provided on the proposed pump stations and water storage tanks, but they 
will follow local building codes by using down lighting to ensure neighbors are not impacted.   

 

  



Full Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 3 - Evaluation of the Magnitude and Importance of Project Impacts 

and
Determination of Significance

Part 3 provides the reasons in support of the determination of significance.  The lead agency must complete Part 3 for every question 
in Part 2 where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where there is a need to explain why a particular 
element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse environmental impact. 

Based on the analysis in Part 3, the lead agency must decide whether to require an environmental impact statement to further assess
the proposed action or whether available information is sufficient for the lead agency to conclude that the proposed action will not 
have a significant adverse environmental impact.  By completing the certification on the next page, the lead agency can complete its 
determination of significance. 

Reasons Supporting This Determination: 
To complete this section: 

Identify the impact based on the Part 2 responses and describe its magnitude.  Magnitude considers factors such as severity,
size or extent of an impact.
Assess the importance of the impact.  Importance relates to the geographic scope, duration, probability of the impact
occurring, number of people affected by the impact and any additional environmental consequences if the impact were to
occur.
The assessment should take into consideration any design element or project changes.
Repeat this process for each Part 2 question where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where
there is a need to explain why a particular element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse
environmental impact.
Provide the reason(s) why the impact may, or will not, result in a significant adverse environmental impact
For Conditional Negative Declarations identify the specific condition(s) imposed that will modify the proposed action so that
no significant adverse environmental impacts will result.
Attach additional sheets, as needed.

Determination of Significance - Type 1 and Unlisted Actions 

SEQR Status:    Type 1   Unlisted 

Identify portions of EAF completed for this Project:   Part 1   Part 2   Part 3 

FEAF 2019



Upon review of the information recorded on this EAF, as noted, plus this additional support information 

and considering both the magnitude and importance of each identified potential impact, it is the conclusion of the 
 as lead agency that: 

  A. This project will result in no significant adverse impacts on the environment, and, therefore, an environmental impact 
statement need not be prepared.  Accordingly, this negative declaration is issued. 

 B. Although this project could have a significant adverse impact on the environment, that impact will be avoided or 
substantially mitigated because of the following conditions which will be required by the lead agency: 

There will, therefore, be no significant adverse impacts from the project as conditioned, and, therefore, this conditioned negative
declaration is issued.  A conditioned negative declaration may be used only for UNLISTED actions (see 6 NYCRR 617. d) .

C. This Project may result in one or more significant adverse impacts on the environment, and an environmental impact 
statement must be prepared to further assess the impact(s) and possible mitigation and to explore alternatives to avoid or reduce those
impacts.  Accordingly, this positive declaration is issued. 

Name of Action: 

Name of Lead Agency: 

Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: 

Title of Responsible Officer: 

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: Date:

Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer) Date: 

For Further Information: 

Contact Person: 

Address:

Telephone Number: 

E-mail:

For Type 1 Actions and Conditioned Negative Declarations, a copy of this Notice is sent to: 

Chief Executive Officer of the political subdivision in which the action will be principally located (e.g., Town / City / Village of) 
Other involved agencies (if any) 
Applicant (if any) 
Environmental Notice Bulletin:  http://www.dec.ny.gov/enb/enb.html



SEQR EAF Long Form Part 3 

A review of potential environmental impacts supporting the Type I determination is provided 
below: 

1.  Impact on Land 
 
Land disturbances will be within road right of ways, municipally owned property and easements.  
The anticipated construction schedule assumes that the project will be completed in Phases, 
between installation of water mains, construction of pump stations, and erecting of water storage 
tanks.  Construction is anticipated to take place beginning in August 2024 through December 
2026. 
 
Throughout construction, short term impacts (excavation, exposed bare soils) will be mitigated 
by implementation of erosion and sediment control measures and post-construction restoration. 
These mitigation measures will be implemented throughout the entirety of construction of the 
project.  The implementation of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for each phase 
of the project will further reduce potential impacts.  
 
In some areas of construction, vegetation will be removed through clearing and grubbing 
methods in order to install water main.  Post construction restoration procedures will be used to 
mitigate potential increased erosion in these locations.    
 
2. Impact on Geological Features 
 
The project will not affect any unique or unusual landforms on the site, as no such geological 
features are located on the project site.  

3. Impact on Surface Water 

Work for the project may occur within or adjacent to Federal or State regulated waterbodies.  
Water mains that will be laid out adjacent to roadways located above a stream will be 
directionally bored underneath the stream to avoid any disturbance.   

Locations o proposed pumping stations and water storage tanks will be selected to avoid impacts 
to wetland areas so as to avoid any change from existing conditions.  Temporary impacts to the 
NYSDEC-regulated 100 foot wetland buffer are anticipated during construction of each phase of 
the project.  No direct impact to the adjacent state regulated freshwater wetland are anticipated.   

Prior to construction, the owner will submit a Joint Application for Permit (Nationwide Permit 
Preconstruction Notification) to the United States Army Corps of Engineers to obtain 
authorization.  The Joint Application will also be submitted to the NYSDEC.  

Stormwater runoff generated during construction will be managed in accordance with SPDES 
General Permit for Stormwater Discharge from Construction Activity.  

 



4. Impact on Groundwater 

Some construction (pipe trenching, excavation) may occur in areas where the shallow 
groundwater table is less than 3-feet below ground surface, in poorly to moderately well-drained 
soils.  Dewatering activities will be conducted in accordance with standard construction practices 
and applicable regulations.  As previously indicated, construction-related activities will be 
conducted in accordance with the SPDES General Permit for Stormwater Discharges from 
Construction Activity. 

5. Impact on Flooding 

No new above grade structures are proposed in flood plains. Pre-existing grades will be restored 
upon the completion of installation activities.   

6. Impacts on Air 

The project does not include state regulated air emission sources.  

7. Impact on Plants and Animals 

The Northern Long-eared Bat and Monarch Butterfly are identified as federally listed 
endangered species or threatened species with known or likely occurrences in Livingston 
County.  Any tree clearing activities that are proposed will take place according to guidance from 
the NYSDEC during select times of the year to protect the bat population.  

8.  Impact on Agricultural Resources 

Construction of the water main is anticipated to take place within public road right of ways for 
the majority of the project.  However, based on site features and existing utilities, some locations 
may require construction to take place within easements within Agricultural districts and 
adjacent to working crop fields. A Preliminary and Final Notice of Intent will be submitted to the 
Department of Agriculture and Markets for the portions of the project located within the 
Agricultural District.  Construction guidance from the Department of Agriculture and Markets 
will be followed to ensure agricultural resources are protected.   

9. Impact on Aesthetic Resources  

The project is located in the Towns of Avon, Lima, Livonia, Groveland, Mt. Morris, Leicester, 
Geneseo and York.  Construction activities will be visible to passers-by during the construction 
phase.  Construction related impacts will be short term and temporary.  The completed project 
will have no impact to aesthetic resources.    

10. Impact on Historic and Archeological Resources  

Impacts to historic and archeological resources were considered by reviewing the New York 
State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation (SHPO) online Cultural Resource 
Information System (CRIS).  Based on a review, ‘Westerly’ was identified as a listing on the 
State or National Register of Historic Places in the vicinity of the project.  The site is not located 
within the affected construction area and no impact by the project is anticipated.   



Based on review of CRIS, the project area is located with multiple areas designated by SHPO as 
“sensitive for the presence of archeological resources.”  The majority of the project will occur 
within existing road right of ways or municipally owned property that have been previously 
disturbed from installation of existing utilities.  Documentation of each phase of the project will 
be submitted to SHPO to evaluate the specific impact of each construction activity and to ensure 
the project will have no effect upon any historic or cultural resources in the area.  

11. Impact on Open Space and Recreation  

The project will not occur on space designated by New York State or local municipalities as an 
open space.  

12. Impact on Critical Environmental Areas 

The project will not occur in any areas categorized as Critical Environmental Areas by 
NYSDEC.  

13. Impact on Transportation 

The project will not have an adverse impact on existing transportation systems.  Traffic may be 
reduced to one lane or detoured during construction.  Contractors will be required to prepare and 
implement a Maintenance and Protections of Traffic Plan.  Pre-existing traffic patterns will be 
restored after construction is complete.   

14. Impact on Energy  

The project will result in minimal increase in electrical demand to power the pumping stations.  
No significant adverse impacts are anticipated.   

15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light 

Construction activities for each phase will generate temporary increases in local background 
noise.  These impacts will be short term, lasting only during construction phase activities.  No 
noise impacts from operations are anticipated.   

New lighting will be provided on the proposed pump stations and water storage tanks, but they 
will follow local building codes by using down lighting to ensure neighbors are not impacted.   

16. Impact on Human Health  

The project will have a positive impact on human health in the community, providing consistent, 
reliable, healthy treated potable water to more residents.  

17. Consistency with Community Plans  

The proposed project is not a “development”, but simply a project to supply a new source of 
water to areas in the County.  Each municipality will have the opportunity to expand distribution 
systems after the completion of the project, but they are typically governed by Department of 
Agriculture and Markets guidelines and local community plans.    



18. Consistency with Community Character  

The project is consistent with the existing community character. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 

1997 D’Angelo Drive 

PO Box 396  

Lakeville, NY 14480 

Phone: (585) 346-3523 

Fax: (585) 346-0954 

TTY NY: (800) 662-1220 

 

 

 

 

Executive Director 

Jason Molino 

To:  Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority Board 

 

From:  Jason Molino, Executive Director 

 

Date:  August 23, 2022 

 

Subject: Water Infrastructure Improvement Act (WIIA) Application – Leicester/York Regional 

Water Supply Expansion Project 

 

 

1. Action Requested: 

 

Board approval of the following as they relate to the Leicester/York Regional Water Supply 

Expansion Project: 

• Four (4) resolutions related to the State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR) 

• Bond Authorization 

• WIIA/Intermunicipal Water Grant (IMG) Submission, and  

• Intermunicipal Agreements 

 

2. Background: 

 

Project History 

 

In February 2022 the Livingston County Board of Supervisors authorized the Authority to develop a 

water supply project to benefit the communities impacted by the AkzoNobel salt mine collapse. 

These municipalities are primarily the Towns of Leicester and York and secondarily the Towns of 

Geneseo, Mt. Morris and Avon.  For the past several months the Authority, and its engineering 

consultants (CPL and MRB) have been working diligently on the planning and development of this 

regional water supply project. 

 

In July the Authority proposed the Leicester/York Regional Water Supply Expansion Project 

(“Project”) to achieve the County’s interest in providing enhanced public drinking water 

infrastructure for the Towns of Leicester and York, as well as supporting other regional interests of 

providing greater access to affordable safe drinking water for all participating municipalities.  A 

draft Engineering Report is currently posted on the Authority website which provides an overview 

and recommendation for the regional water project. This report focuses on potable water supply, 

transmission, distribution, and the storage required to provide an increased capacity and reliable 

drinking water to the impacted communities. This initial planning phase examined multiple 

alternatives with intermunicipal cooperation to provide water to as many residents as possible while 

considering several variables which included cost, customer benefits, water rates, potential 

development, and energy efficiency.  The participating municipalities identified in the recommended 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 

1997 D’Angelo Drive 

PO Box 396  

Lakeville, NY 14480 

Phone: (585) 346-3523 

Fax: (585) 346-0954 

TTY NY: (800) 662-1220 

 

 

 

 

Executive Director 

Jason Molino 

alternative are the Villages of Mt. Morris and Leicester and the Towns of Leicester, York, Mt. 

Morris and Geneseo. 

 

WIIA/IMG Program Overview 

 

The Authority has received multiple grants and financing from the WIIA program in recent years.  

The Lakeville Wastewater Plant Improvements (2017 - $9.9M), County Wide Water Improvements 

(2019 - $8.5M) and the Conesus Lake Pump Station Improvements (2021 - $5M) have all included a 

combination of grants and long-term financing through WIIA’s Clean Water or Drinking Water 

programs. 

 

New to the Authority is the Intermunicipal Water Infrastructure Grants (IMG) Program.  

Cooperating municipalities with an eligible project may receive an IMG grant award up to the lesser 

of $30 million or 40% of net eligible project costs.  Eligible projects include water quality 

infrastructure projects at municipally owned public water systems for construction, replacement, or 

repair of infrastructure; or compliance with environmental and public health laws and regulations 

related to water quality. 

 

Each IMG project must meet the following criteria: 

 

• Serve multiple municipalities; 

• Be a shared drinking water or sewage treatment infrastructure project, such as: 

o More than one municipality undertaking a capital improvement project jointly,  

o Consolidation of intermunicipal facilities, 

o Shared water quality infrastructure,  

o Regional wastewater treatment facilities for multiple municipalities, or  

o The interconnection of multiple municipal water systems; 

• Have a valid and binding project Intermunicipal Agreement (IMA) between at least two 

cooperating municipalities related to financing of the IMG project that describes the 

proposed project, the role of each municipality, and the costs attributable to each 

municipality;  

• Designate a “lead municipality” that applies on behalf of all cooperating municipalities; 

• Result in construction for the requested scope; 

• Not have started construction before October 1, 2021;  

• Not have completed construction before July 1, 2022; and  

• Not be for the construction of water infrastructure that exclusively supports new 

development, whether residential or commercial. 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 

1997 D’Angelo Drive 

PO Box 396  

Lakeville, NY 14480 

Phone: (585) 346-3523 

Fax: (585) 346-0954 

TTY NY: (800) 662-1220 

 

 

 

 

Executive Director 

Jason Molino 

Current Status of the Project 

 

During the months of July and August the Authority presented a summary of the Project to potential 

participating municipalities discussing the recommended alternative, as well as all alternatives 

evaluated.  During this process, the recommended alternative was amended to include three (3) 

additional municipalities, the Village of Avon and the Towns of Avon and Lima.  As a result, the 

total number of participating municipalities has increased from six (6) to nine (9). 

 

To date, the Villages of Mt. Morris, Leicester and Avon and the Towns of Leicester, York, Mt. 

Morris and Avon have executed the Inter-Municipal Agreement demonstrating their Statement of 

Intent to participate in the Leicester/York Regional Water Supply Expansion Project.  The Towns of 

Geneseo and Lima, as well as Livingston County have scheduled Board meetings in August and 

September and are expected to approve the Inter-Municipal Agreement as well. 

 

On August 18th the Draft Intended Use Plan (IUP) for the NYS EFC Drinking Water State 

Revolving Loan Fund was published.  In the IUP the Project scored very well and qualified for 

hardship financing, or 0% interest for 30-year long-term financing.  This preliminary scoring is a 

good indication that the Project will be competitive for the WIIA/IMG application in September 

2022. 

 

In addition, a meeting is being scheduled with the Village of Geneseo for the week of August 29th to 

discuss the Villages’ potential participation in the project. 

 

3. Financial Implications: 

 

The project sources and uses for this project is based on the following: 

 

• Total project costs ($55.4M) was determined by current regional biding results for similar 

projects (water line installation, water tank and pump station construction, etc.); 

• Expected IMG grant ($22M) and loan ($17M) awards from EFC; and 

• The commitment from the County to utilize up to $17 million of Akzo Settlement Funds for 

water infrastructure installation related to the Towns of Leicester and York. 

 

Currently the proposed total project cost is estimated at $54.5 million.  The Authority could apply 

for 40%, or $22.03 million in WIIA/IMG grant funds and $17.4 million in long-term financing.   

 

As lead agency for the Project, the Authority would assume the debt (est. $17.4M) related to the 

project.  Exclusive water supply agreements with all participating municipalities would be required 

to ensure that the Authority has a guaranteed revenue source through wholesale water sales equal to 

the length of the debt service.   

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 

1997 D’Angelo Drive 

PO Box 396  

Lakeville, NY 14480 

Phone: (585) 346-3523 

Fax: (585) 346-0954 

TTY NY: (800) 662-1220 

 

 

 

 

Executive Director 

Jason Molino 

The wholesale water rate would be comprised of three parts: (i) a “Capital Surcharge” in an amount 

that will not (cumulatively amongst all Participating Municipalities) exceed the annual debt service 

associated with the bonds and/or loans issued by the Authority to finance the Project costs; (ii) a 

“Wholesale Purchase Rate” that will consist of the cost the Authority purchases wholesale water 

from the City of Rochester, or its assignee; and (iii) a “LCWSA O&M Charge” that will include the 

operation and maintenance, permitting, administrative and related costs associated with the Project.   

 

The proposed Capital Surcharge for the Project is based on the estimated debt needed to support the 

Project and the current known annual consumption of each participating municipality.  There was no 

expected growth factor considered when determining annual consumption so that expected revenues 

would not be over projected.  As a result, as new customers may come online in the future, such as 

additional water districts, the Capital Surcharge for the Project may decrease due to growth in 

customer base. 

 

The LCWSA O&M Charge was estimated based on current operation and maintenance, 

administrative and related costs to operating LCWSA’s existing water systems.   

 

4. Next Steps: 

 

The WIIA/IMG grant application is due September 9th.  To successfully apply for funding for the 

Leicester/York Water Supply Expansion Project the following actions need to be taken by the 

Authority Board and participating municipalities: 

 

a. All municipalities that are interested in participating in the Project should adopt and sign the 

IMA.  Currently seven municipalities have adopted the IMA and three more, including 

Livingston County, are expected to act within the next three weeks. 

b. The Authority Board will have to act on the following: 

i. Authorize the execution of an IMA with the participating municipalities; 

ii. Authorize the execution of an IMA with Livingston County; 

iii. Declare the Authority Lead Agency and Make a Negative Declaration in accordance 

with SEQRA for the Project; 

iv. Authorize the Bond Authorization and application submission of the Project to the 

WIIA/IMG program. 

 



 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-28 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE (A) SUBMITTING AN APPLIATION FOR A GRANT 

AND (B) A TWELFTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION FOR THE CONSTRUCTION 
AND DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL WATER FACILITIES, PUMP STATIONS, 

WATER STORAGE TANKS, WATER MAINS AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, the Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority (the “Authority”) has 
proposed the Leicester/York Regional Water Expansion Supply Project (the “Project”) to provide 
enhanced public drinking water infrastructure for the Towns of Leicester and York, as well as 
supporting regional interests of providing greater access to affordable safe drinking water for all 
municipal entities participating in the agreement referenced below; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Towns of Geneseo, Leicester, Mt. Morris, York, Lima, Avon and the 

Villages of Avon, Leicester, and Mt. Morris have all entered into an Intermunicipal Agreement 
dated August 31, 2022 (the “Agreement”) to benefit from the Project and support the Authority’s 
effort to complete the project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority has deemed it necessary in connection with the Project to 
finance the Project with a combination of debt and grants, which will be used to fund the 
completion of the Project, and is desirous of submitting an application and related documents for 
a $22,020,000 grant under the New York State Water Infrastructure Improvement Act and the 
New York State Intermunicipal Water Infrastructure Grant Program (collectively “WIIA/IMG”) 
as administrated by the New York State Environmental Facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority is required by Section 3.2(b) of the Authority’s General Bond 
Resolution, dated as of January 1, 2008, to adopt a Supplemental Bond Resolution authorizing 
additional indebtedness to be incurred by the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a condition precedent to incurring the above related indebtedness, the 

Authority intends to adopt the Twelfth Supplemental Resolution annexed hereto and made a part 
hereof; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby resolved as follows: 
 
1.  The Authority is authorized to submit the WIIA/IMG grant application and related 

documents; and  
2. The Twelfth Supplemental Resolution is hereby approved and adopted. 

  



-1  

 
August 31, 2022 
Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
Moved By: 
Seconded By: 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
 
  



-2  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY 
 
      ________________________________________________________  

TWELFTH SUPPLEMENTAL 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UP TO 

$18,000,000 E.F.C. CLEAN WATER FACILITY NOTE - 2022 
                               ________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Dated as of August 31, 2022 
  



-3  

 
TWELFTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UP TO 

 
$18,000,000 E.F.C. CLEAN WATER FACILITY NOTE - 2022 

 
 
 

Be It Resolved by the Governing Board of the Livingston County Water and Sewer 
Authority (the “Authority), as follows: 

 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND STATUTORY AUTHORITY 
 

SECTION 1.01. Twelfth    Supplemental     Resolution. This Twelfth 
Supplemental Resolution Authorizing up to $18,000,000 E.F.C. Clean Water Facility Note - 
2022 is supplemental to the resolution adopted by the Governing Board of the Authority dated 
as of January 1, 2008, entitled “General Revenue Bond Resolution” and referred to herein as 
the “Resolution”. 

 
SECTION 1.02. Definitions. (a) All terms that are defined in Section 1.5 

of the Resolution shall have the same meanings, respectively, in this Twelfth Supplemental 
Resolution as such terms are given in said Section 1.5 of the Resolution. 

 
(b) In addition, as used in this Twelfth Supplemental Resolution, 

unless the context shall otherwise require, the following terms shall have the following 
meanings: 

 
“Closing Date” shall mean the date the 2022 Note closes. 
 
“E.F.C.” shall mean the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation. 
 
“Project Finance Agreement” shall mean the Project Finance Agreement 

between   the Authority and E.F.C relating to the 2022 Note. 
 
“Twelfth Supplemental Resolution” shall mean this Twelfth Supplemental 

Resolution. 
 
“2022 Note” shall mean the E.F.C Clean Water Facility Note - 2022 

authorized pursuant to this resolution in an amount not to exceed $18,000,000. 
 
(c) Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to 

include correlative words of the feminine and neutral genders. Unless the context shall 



-4  

otherwise indicate, words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and 
vice versa, and words importing persons shall include authorities and associations, including 
public bodies, as well as natural persons, but shall not include the Authority. 

(d) The terms “hereby”, “hereof”, “hereto,  “herein”, “hereunder”, and any 
similar terms, as used in this Twelfth Supplemental Resolution, refer to the Twelfth Supplemental 
Resolution. 

SECTION 1.03. Authority for the Twelfth Supplemental Resolution.   This 
Twelfth Supplemental Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the 
Resolution. 

 
ARTICLE II 

 
AUTHORIZATION, TERMS AND 
ISSUANCE OF THE  2022 NOTE 

SECTION 2.01.  Authorization of the 2022 Note, Principal Amounts, 
Designation and Series.  The 2022 Note is hereby authorized to be issued in an aggregate principal 
amount not to exceed $18,000,000 and subject to the terms, conditions and limitations established 
in the Resolution, this Twelfth Supplemental Resolution and Project Finance Agreement with 
E.F.C. 

SECTION 2.02.  Purposes. The purposes for which the proceeds of the 2022 
Note are being issued are to (i) finance the construction and development of regional water 
facilities, pump stations, water storage tanks, water mains and other improvements, and (ii) pay 
the costs of issuance. 

SECTION 2.03.  Date of the 2022 Note.  The 2022 Note shall be dated the 
date the 2022 Note closes with the E.F.C. 

SECTION 2.04.   Maturities and Interest Rates.  The 2022 Note shall bear 
such interest and shall mature as set forth in the Project Finance Agreement.   

SECTION 2.05. Place of Payment.  The principal of the 2022 Note shall be 
payable at maturity to E.F.C. 

 
ARTICLE III 

 
APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF THE 2022 NOTE 

 
  SECTION 3.01. Application of Proceeds and Other Moneys.  All proceeds 
will be deposited into the Project Fund. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 



-5  

FORM AND EXECUTION OF THE 2022 NOTE 

SECTION 4.01. Form of the 2022 Note. Subject to the provisions of the 
Resolution, the 2022 Note in registered form, together with the form of assignment therefor and 
the Trustee's Certificate of Authentication, shall be in substantially the form set forth in the 
Project Finance Agreement. 

SECTION 4.02. Execution and Authentication of the 2022 Note.  Pursuant 
to the provisions of Section 2.3 of the Resolution, and this Twelfth Supplemental Resolution 
either the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson or the Executive Director of the Authority is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute, by such person's manual or facsimile signature, the 2022 Note 
in the name of the Authority and the corporate seal (or a facsimile thereof) shall be thereunto 
affixed, imprinted, engraved or otherwise reproduced thereon. The Secretary of the Authority is 
hereby authorized and directed to attest, by manual or facsimile signature, the execution of the 
2022 Note. The Trustee is hereby authorized to authenticate, by manual or facsimile signature, 
the 2022 Note and to deliver the same to or upon the order of the Authority in such amounts and 
at such times as the Trustee shall be directed in writing by an Authorized Officer. 
 

ARTICLE V 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

SECTION 5.01. State Covenant.   In accordance with the provisions of the 
Act the State has pledged and agreed with the owners of Bonds of the Authority that the State 
will not alter or limit the rights vested by the Act in the Authority to finance or refinance the 
acquisition, construction, maintenance, operation, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation and 
improvement of facilities and to fulfill the terms of any agreement made with or for the benefit 
of the holders of bonds of the Authority or with any public corporation or person with reference 
to such project or part thereof, or in any way impair the rights and remedies of the Authority's 
bondholders, until the 2022 Note and all costs and expenses in connection with any action or 
proceeding by or on behalf of such holders, are fully met and discharged. The State has further 
pledged and agreed with the holders of any bonds issued by the Authority pursuant to the Act 
that the State will not alter or limit the rights of the Authority to establish and collect rates, rents, 
fees or other charges to pay expenses in connection with the System. 

 
SECTION 5.02.  Authorized Officers. The Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, 

Secretary, and Treasurer of the Authority, and the Executive Director, are each hereby authorized 
to deliver and execute in the name and on behalf of the Authority any agreement, certificate, 
opinion, record or other document required by or authorized pursuant to the Resolution or this 
Twelfth Supplemental Resolution in connection with the issuance of the 2022 Note. 
 
 

SECTION 5.03.  When Effective. The Twelfth Supplemental Resolution 
shall become effective immediately upon the filing with the Trustee of a copy hereof certified by 
an Authorized Officer. 

 



-6  

I N  WITNESS WHEREOF, LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER 
AUTHORITY has caused this resolution to be executed by its Executive Director and its 
corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, attested by its Secretary, all as of the day and year first 
above written. 

 
 

[SEAL]  LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER 
AND SEWER AUTHORITY  

 
 
 
 
Attest: ____________________________                       
              Colleen Murphy, Secretary 
    

 
By:  ____________________________          
         Jason Molino, Executive Director 

  
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION #2022-29 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SIGN AN INTERMUNICIPAL 
AGREEMENT WITH PARTICIPATING MUNICIPALITIES – LEICESTER/YORK 

REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY EXPANSION PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, by Resolution Nos. 2021-185 and 2022-201, the Livingston County Board of 

Supervisors approved the Akzo Settlement Committee’s recommendations to use Akzo Nobel settlement 
funds for design and engineering work related to the improvement of public drinking water infrastructure 
in the Towns of Leicester and York; and  

 
WHEREAS, County Resolution No. 2022-066 authorized the Chairman of the Livingston County 

Board of Supervisors and the Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority (“Authority”) Resolution 
No. 2022-11 authorized the Executive Director to sign any and all necessary Memorandum of Agreement 
documents for the Authority to provide project management and oversight assistance for planning and 
engineering work needed to improve the public drinking water infrastructure for the Towns of Leicester 
and York; 

 
WHEREAS, after considerable planning and engineering review, the Authority has officially 

proposed the Leicester/York Regional Water Supply Expansion Project (“Project”) to achieve the 
County’s interest in providing enhanced public drinking water infrastructure in the Towns of Leicester 
and York; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Geneseo, Town of Leicester, Town of Mt. Morris, Town of York, Town 

of Lima, Town of Avon, Village of Leicester, Village of Mt. Morris and Village of Avon as collectively 
referred to as the “Participating Municipalities”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed Project contemplates that the Authority will provide wholesale water 

supply from its 4 MGD capacity, and/or its assignees to be transmitted to the Participating Municipalities 
through new and existing infrastructure and the Participating Municipalities, with the exception of the 
Village of Avon, will purchase wholesale water, from the Authority as their exclusive source for drinking 
water.  In the case of the Village of Avon, the Village would provide the Authority with additional water 
supply for purchase and distribution to Participating Municipalities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Project consists of various capital improvements projected to cost approximately 

$54,400,000.00. Financing for the Project will consist of a combination of bonds to be issued by the 
Authority, Akzo Nobel settlement funds, and grants and/or loans from the New York State Environmental 
Facilities Corporation (“EFC”), the United States Department of Agriculture, the Northern Border 
Regional Commission, and/or other funding agencies; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed Project provides for the Authority to design, finance, procure, construct 

and operate the Project, so long as each of the Participating Municipalities shall purchase water from the 
Authority in connection with the design, procurement, acquisition, financing, construction and permitting 
of the Project; and  

 



WHEREAS, the Towns of Geneseo, Leicester, Mt. Morris, York, Lima, Avon and the Villages of 
Avon and Leicester are desirous of having access to adequate supply of safe drinking water to provide for 
and meet current and future residential, commercial, industrial and agricultural water demands, and desire 
stable and affordable water rates, and in the case of the Village of Mt. Morris, in lieu of upgrading and 
continuing to independently operate its water treatment facility, desire to work together cooperatively to 
develop a regional water supply distribution system that would meet their collective needs and, 
accordingly, wish to enter into a formal Intermunicipal Agreement; now, therefore, be it  

 
RESOLVED, that the Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority Board hereby supports the 

Leicester/York Regional Water Supply Expansion Project, continued collaboration between the Athority 
and the Participating Municipalities relative to the design and construction of the Project; and be it further  

 
RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized to sign an Intermunicipal 

Agreement formalizing the collaboration of the Authority and the Participating Municipalities relative to 
the Leicester/York Regional Water Supply Expansion Project, subject to review by the Athority Attorney. 

 
 

August 31, 2022 
Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
Moved By: 
Seconded By: 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION #2022-30 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SIGN AN INTERMUNICIPAL 
AGREEMENT WITH LIVINGSTON COUNTY – LEICESTER/YORK REGIONAL WATER 

SUPPLY EXPANSION PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, by Resolution Nos. 2021-185 and 2022-201, the Livingston County Board of 

Supervisors approved the Akzo Settlement Committee’s recommendations to use Akzo Nobel settlement 
funds for design and engineering work related to the improvement of public drinking water infrastructure 
in the Towns of Leicester and York; and  

 
WHEREAS, County Resolution No. 2022-066 authorized the Chairman of the Livingston County 

Board of Supervisors and the Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority (“Authority”) Resolution 
No. 2022-11 authorized the Executive Director to sign any and all necessary Memorandum of Agreement 
documents for the Authority to provide project management and oversight assistance for planning and 
engineering work needed to improve the public drinking water infrastructure for the Towns of Leicester 
and York; 

 
WHEREAS, after considerable planning and engineering review, the Authority has officially 

proposed the Leicester/York Regional Water Supply Expansion Project (“Project”) to achieve the 
County’s interest in providing enhanced public drinking water infrastructure in the Towns of Leicester 
and York; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Project consists of various capital improvements projected to cost approximately 

$54,400,000.00. Financing for the Project will consist of a combination of bonds to be issued by the 
Authority, Akzo Nobel settlement funds, and grants and/or loans from the New York State Environmental 
Facilities Corporation (“EFC”), the United States Department of Agriculture, the Northern Border 
Regional Commission, and/or other funding agencies; and  

 
WHEREAS, with respect to utilizing Akzo Nobel settlement funds as the Project moves forward, 

the Akzo Settlement Committee recommends making available up to $17,000,000.00 to support all 
infrastructure improvements related to impacts from the Retsof Salt Mine collapse, subject to review and 
approval by the New York State Attorney General’s Office and New York State Department of 
Environmental Conservation; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County and the Authority desire to continue to work collaboratively on the 

design, finance, and construction of the Project and, accordingly, wish to enter into a formal 
Intermunicipal Agreement; now, therefore, be it  

 
RESOLVED, that the Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority Board hereby supports the 

Leicester/York Regional Water Supply Expansion Project, continued collaboration between the County 
and the Authority relative to the design and construction of the Project, and the Akzo Settlement 
Committee’s recommendation to utilize up to $17,000,000.00 in Akzo Nobel Settlement funds to help 
finance the portion of the Project related to enhancing the public drinking water infrastructure in the 



Towns of Leicester and York, subject to review and approval by the New York State Attorney General’s 
Office and New York State Department of Environmental Conservation; and be it further  

 
RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized to sign an Intermunicipal 

Agreement formalizing the collaboration of the Authority and the County relative to the Leicester/York 
Regional Water Supply Expansion Project, subject to review by the Authority Attorney. 

 
 

August 31, 2022 
Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
Moved By: 
Seconded By: 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION #2022-31 
 

RESOLUTION CLASSIFYING THE LAKEVILLE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
PHOSPHORUS REMOVAL PROJECT AND GROVELAND WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

PLANT IMPROVEMENTS IN LIVINGSTON COUNTY AS TYPE II ACTIONS, 
ESTABLISHING LEAD AGENCY AND DETERMINING THE SIGNIFICANCE OF SUCH 

ACTION, AND DIRECTING THAT THE NEGATIVE DECLARATION BE PUBLISHED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SEQRA 

  
WHEREAS, the Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority (“Authority”) has proposed to 

install a new phosphorus removal system including chemical injection, storage and chemical 
containment area in order to remove phosphorus in accordance with New York State Department of 
Environmental Conservation (“NYSDEC”) requirements at the existing Lakeville Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (“Lakeville WWTP” site; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has proposed improvements to the existing Groveland Wastewater 

Treatment Plant (“Groveland WWTP”) to include: 
 
1. Treatment Improvements:  Replacement of existing pumps and associated piping within 

the treatment plant, installation of a new influent screen unit, and new controls and 
sensing equipment to increase efficiency of the operation; 

2. Site Work:  Replacement of existing damaged effluent concrete headwall, new doors and 
sump pumps around the plant, as well as painting the existing steel components 
throughout the facility; 

3. Ultraviolet Disinfection: In accordance with NYSDEC requirements, the construction of 
a new ultraviolet disinfection system and enclosure at the existing WWTP site; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of the State Environmental Quality Review Act 

(“SEQRA”), the Authority must review the environmental implications of the Lakeville Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Phosphorus Removal Project and Groveland Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Improvements (the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Type II actions are those actions, or classes of actions, which have been found 

categorically to not have significant adverse impacts on the environment, or actions that have been 
statutorily exempt from SEQRA review, and Type II actions do not require preparation of an 
Environmental Assessment Form, a negative or positive declaration, or an Environmental Impact 
Statement; and now therefore be it, 

 
RESOLVED, pursuant to 6 NYCRR Section 617.5 (c), the project is determined to be Type II 

actions because the involves the following requiring no further review by the Authority: 
 

1. 617.5 (c) (1) maintenance or repair involving no substantial changes in an existing 
structure or facility. 



2. 617.5 (c) (2) replacement, rehabilitation or reconstruction of a structure or facility, in 
kind, on the same site, including upgrading buildings to meet building or fire codes, 
unless such action meets or exceeds any of the thresholds in section 617.4; 

 
 

August 31, 2022 
Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
Moved By: 
Seconded By: 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 

1997 D’Angelo Drive 

PO Box 396  

Lakeville, NY 14480 

Phone: (585) 346-3523 

Fax: (585) 346-0954 

TTY NY: (800) 662-1220 

 

 

 

 

Executive Director 

Jason Molino 

To:  Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority Board 

 

From:  Jason Molino, Executive Director 

 

Date:  August 23, 2022 

 

Subject: Water Infrastructure Improvement Act (WIIA) Application – Lakeville Wastewater 

Treatment Plant Phosphorus Removal Project and Groveland Wastewater Treatment 

Plant Improvements 

 

1. Action Requested: 

 

Board approval of two resolutions related to SEQR review, bond authorization and grant submission 

for the Lakeville Wastewater Treatment Plant Phosphorus Removal Project and Groveland 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements (the “Project”) to the Water Infrastructure Improvement 

Act (“WIIA”). 

 

2. Background: 

 

Groveland Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements 

 

On March 1, 2019, the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (“NYSDEC”) 

provided a letter to the Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority (“Authority”) stating the 

intent to renew the State Pollution Discharge Elimination System (“SPDES”) discharge permit for 

the Groveland Station Wastewater Treatment Plant (“Groveland WWTP”). This permit renewal 

included the addition of a seasonal disinfection requirement. Therefore, the Authority requested CPL 

to prepare a report to evaluate options for wastewater effluent disinfection at Groveland WWTP. 

 

The July 2019 report reviewed process calculations and cost estimates, as well as operation and 

maintenance (“O&M”) expenses associated with two disinfection technologies: ultraviolet (“UV”) 

disinfection and chlorination/dichlorination.  UV disinfection was determined to be the optimal 

alternative considering the operational costs of purchasing the required chemicals for chlorine 

disinfection, the disadvantages of handling dangerous chemicals, and the dichlorination requirements 

to meet residual chlorine limits. Therefore, it was proposed that a UV disinfection system utilizing 

energy efficient, low pressure high output lamps be installed in a concrete channel following the 

final clarifier. 

 

In December 2021 the Authority was awarded a grant, through the NYSDEC Water Quality 

Improvement Program (“WQIP”) program, for 75%, or $367,576, of the construction costs.  The 

remaining 25% of the construction cost and engineering costs equal a local share of $158,494.   

Following the grant announcement, in January 2022 the Authority Board approved the design, bid 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 

1997 D’Angelo Drive 

PO Box 396  

Lakeville, NY 14480 

Phone: (585) 346-3523 

Fax: (585) 346-0954 

TTY NY: (800) 662-1220 

 

 

 

 

Executive Director 

Jason Molino 

and inspection services for the project to CPL, as design submission to the NYS DEC was required 

by May 1, 2022. 

 

Lakeville Wastewater Treatment Plant Phosphorus Removal Project 

 

The SPEDS Permit for the Lakeville Wastewater Treatment Plant (“Lakeville WWTP”) includes a 

compliance schedule for “Phosphorus Concentration Effluent Limitation” that indicates the plant 

was required to monitor the effluent concentration until July 31, 2022.  Beginning August 1, 2022, 

the plant was required to meet the effluent limit of 1 mg/L.   

 

The Authority previously designed and bid a chemical feed system as part of the recent upgrades at 

the Lakeville WWTP.  The system included an insulted exterior storage tank, small enclosure for the 

chemical feed pumps, and injection in the splitter box prior to the final clarifiers.   However, since 

the chemical feed system was not part of the original project budget and the bids came in over 

budget, it was elected to remove the work from the contract.  This occurred in the spring of 2021.     

 

After the initial design and bids were rejected, the Authority began the process of pilot testing 

chemicals and re-evaluating the design of the chemical feed system.  Pilot testing resulted in the 

selection of Epic 70 as the most cost-effective solution, when compared to Alum, Aries 291, and rare 

earth metals.  The projected dosage is 40 gallons per day.     

 

A report was completed in July 2021 that outlined the proposed system, with a major change from 

the original design.  Versus an insulated double wall tank that would subject the chemical to jelling 

and potentially freezing, the proposed solution includes a heated building that would fully enclose 

the chemical feed system including the tank and pumps.  This was viewed as an appropriate long-

term solution, even though the budget for the project would increase.  The full enclosure will also 

fully protect the equipment from the UV degradation and the elements.    

 

In December 2021 the Authority was awarded a grant, through the NYSDEC Water Quality 

Improvement Program (“WQIP”) program, for 75%, or $198,055, of the construction costs.  The 

remaining 25% of the construction cost and engineering costs equal a local share of $190,945.   

 

WIIA Clean Water Projects 

 

Eligible clean water projects may be awarded the lesser of $25 million or 25% of net eligible costs.  

Net eligible costs is the total project cost less any third-party grants awarded with respect to the 

project. 

 

3. Financial Implications: 

 

Because both projects are relatively small, after consulting with the EFC, CPL and bond counsel, it 

is recommended that both projects be combined and submitted as one funding request.  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 

1997 D’Angelo Drive 

PO Box 396  

Lakeville, NY 14480 

Phone: (585) 346-3523 

Fax: (585) 346-0954 

TTY NY: (800) 662-1220 

 

 

 

 

Executive Director 

Jason Molino 

 

The proposed budgets for each project are as follows: 

 

 
 

Under “Option 1”, a grant/loan request, the Authority would be seeking 25% of net eligible project 

costs, or $47,736, in addition to financing $144,209, the balance of the project.  Should the Authority 

not receive grant funding, the full balance of the project could be financed through EFC (Option 2).  

It should be noted that regardless of receiving WIIA grant funds, the Authority could also choose to 

not finance the remaining local share and pay cash-for-capital with existing reserve funds.  This 

decision does not have to be made until the outcome of the grant is announced. 

 

 
 

Groveland WWTP Improvements is broken out into two options as well.  The “UV” improvements 

only include construction of the UV treatment requirement to the Groveland WWTP.  The “UV & 

General” improvements include the UV treatment, but also the replacement of existing pumps and 

associated piping within the treatment plant, installation of a new influent screen unit, new controls 

and sensing equipment to increase efficiency of the operation, replacement of existing damaged 

effluent concrete headwall, new doors and sump pumps around the plant, as well as painting the 

existing steel components throughout the facility.  These additional improvements are needed at the 

plant as there has been no capital investment in the facility since its installation 20 years ago. 

 

While the “UV & General” improvements are an additional $1.14 million of investment, it is 

proposed that the Authority do these improvements in tandem with the establishment and connection 

of the Scottsburg Sewer District to Groveland Station WWTP. 

 

Lakeville WWTP Phosphorus Option 1 Option 2

Project Total (Rounded) 390,000$             390,000$             

WQIP Grant 198,055$             198,055$             

WIIA Grant 47,736$                

Loan 144,209$             191,945$             

Interest Rate 2.5% 2.5%

Annual Payment 6,890$                  9,171$                  

Groveland WWTP Improvements UV UV & General

Project Total (Rounded) 680,000$             1,820,000$          

WQIP Grant 367,576$             367,576$             

WIIA Grant 78,106$                363,106$             

NYSEFC Loan 234,318$             1,089,318$          

Interest Rate 0% 0%

Annual Payment 7,811$                  36,311$                



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 

1997 D’Angelo Drive 

PO Box 396  

Lakeville, NY 14480 

Phone: (585) 346-3523 

Fax: (585) 346-0954 

TTY NY: (800) 662-1220 

 

 

 

 

Executive Director 

Jason Molino 

In September the Town of Sparta Board will consider forming a Scottsburg Sewer District as 

petitions have been circulated exceeding the minimum requirements needed for district creation.  If 

the sewer district is established, the Town expects to apply for Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) funding and WIIA funding in 2023.  Due to lower median household incomes within 

the proposed district boundaries, the project is expected to score well for hardship financing and 

grants. 

 

It is estimated that the district will include approximately 65 new sewer customers connecting to the 

Groveland WWTP.  The additional customers will generate approximately $24,000 that could be 

committed to covering approximately 65% of the expected debt related to the additional Groveland 

WWTP improvements.  The remaining 35% can be covered by existing customers, or the project can 

be scaled back to match only the increase in expected revenue.  

 

Should the sewer district not be constructed, the Authority can decide later, even if awarded grants 

and financing, to not move forward with all or portions of the additional improvements.  It should be 

noted that these improvements will likely have to be made within the next 5-7 years. 

 

4. Next Steps: 

 

Considering the Authority can limit or remove specific aspects of the larger Groveland WWTP 

improvements, it is recommended that the Authority apply for the maximum amount of grant and 

financing funding for both the Lakeville and Groveland projects.  This will provide the Authority 

with maximum opportunity to receive the greatest possible funding for both projects, while reserving 

its right to limit either project at a later date. 

 

 



 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-32 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE (A) SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION FOR GRANTS 

AND (B) A THIRTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION FOR THE 
INSTALLATION OF A NEW UV DISINFECTION SYSTEM AND WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS AT THE GROVELAND WASTEWATER 

TREATMENT PLANT AND A NEW CHEMICAL FEED SYSTEM AT THE 
LAKEVILLE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

 
WHEREAS, the Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority (the “Authority”) has 

proposed improvements which include the installation of a new UV disinfection system and 
wastewater treatment plant improvements at the Groveland Wastewater Treatment Plant and a new 
chemical feed system at the Lakeville Wastewater Treatment Plant (collectively, the “Project”); 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority has deemed it necessary in connection with the Project to 
financing the Project with a combination of debt and grants, which will be used to fund the 
completion of the Project, and is desirous of submitting an application and related documents for 
a $447,922 grant under the New York State Water Infrastructure Improvement Act (“WIIA”) as 
administrated by the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority is required by Section 3.2(b) of the Authority’s General Bond 
Resolution, dated as of January 1, 2008, to adopt a Supplemental Bond Resolution authorizing 
additional indebtedness to be incurred by the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a condition precedent to incurring the above related indebtedness, the 

Authority intends to adopt the Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution annexed hereto and made a 
part hereof; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby resolved as follows: 
 

1. The Authority is authorized to submit the WIIA grant application and related 
documents; and  

2. The Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution is hereby approved and adopted. 
 

August 31, 2022 
Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
Moved By: 
Seconded By: 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 



-1-  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY 
 
      ________________________________________________________  

THIRTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UP TO 

$1,400,000 E.F.C. CLEAN WATER FACILITY NOTE - 2022 
                               ________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Dated as of August 31, 2022 
  



-2-  

 
THIRTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UP TO 

 
$1,400,000 E.F.C. CLEAN WATER FACILITY NOTE - 2022 

 
 
 

Be It Resolved by the Governing Board of the Livingston County Water and Sewer 
Authority (the “Authority), as follows: 

 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND STATUTORY AUTHORITY 
 

SECTION 1.01. Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution.   This 
Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution Authorizing up to $1,400,000 E.F.C. Clean Water 
Facility Note - 2022 is supplemental to the resolution adopted by the Governing Board of the 
Authority dated as of January 1, 2008, entitled “General Revenue Bond Resolution” and 
referred to herein as the “Resolution”. 

 
SECTION 1.02. Definitions. (a) All terms that are defined in Section 1.5 

of the Resolution shall have the same meanings, respectively, in this Thirteenth Supplemental 
Resolution as such terms are given in said Section 1.5 of the Resolution. 

 
(b) In addition, as used in this Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution, 

unless the context shall otherwise require, the following terms shall have the following 
meanings: 

 
“Closing Date” shall mean the date the 2022 Note closes. 
 
“E.F.C.” shall mean the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation. 
 
“Project Finance Agreement” shall mean the Project Finance Agreement 

between   the Authority and E.F.C relating to the 2022 Note. 
 
“Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution” shall mean this Thirteenth 

Supplemental Resolution. 
 
“2022 Note” shall mean the E.F.C Clean Water Facility Note - 2022 

authorized pursuant to this resolution in an amount not to exceed $1,400,000. 
 
(c) Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to 

include correlative words of the feminine and neutral genders. Unless the context shall 



-3-  

otherwise indicate, words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and 
vice versa, and words importing persons shall include authorities and associations, including 
public bodies, as well as natural persons, but shall not include the Authority. 

(d) The terms “hereby”, “hereof”, “hereto,  “herein”, “hereunder”, and any 
similar terms, as used in this Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution, refer to the Thirteenth 
Supplemental Resolution. 

SECTION 1.03. Authority for the Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution.   
This Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the 
Resolution. 

 
ARTICLE II 

 
AUTHORIZATION, TERMS AND 
ISSUANCE OF THE  2022 NOTE 

SECTION 2.01.  Authorization of the 2022 Note, Principal Amounts, 
Designation and Series.  The 2022 Note is hereby authorized to be issued in an aggregate principal 
amount not to exceed $1,400,000 and subject to the terms, conditions and limitations established 
in the Resolution, this Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution and Project Finance Agreement with 
E.F.C. 

SECTION 2.02.  Purposes. The purposes for which the proceeds of the 2022 
Note are being issued are to (i) finance the installation of a new UV disinfection system and 
wastewater treatment plant improvements at the Groveland Wastewater Treatment Plant (ii) 
financing the construction of a new chemical feed system at the Lakeville Wastewater Treatment 
Plant, and (iii) pay the costs of issuance. 

SECTION 2.03. Date of the 2022 Note.  The 2022 Note shall be dated the 
date the 2022 Note closes with the E.F.C. 

SECTION 2.04.   Maturities and Interest Rates.  The 2022 Note shall bear 
such interest and shall mature as set forth in the Project Finance Agreement.   

SECTION 2.05. Place of Payment.  The principal of the 2022 Note shall be 
payable at maturity to E.F.C. 

 
ARTICLE III 

 
APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF THE 2022 NOTE 

 
  SECTION 3.01. Application of Proceeds and Other Moneys.  All proceeds 
will be deposited into the Project Fund. 
 

ARTICLE IV 



-4-  

 
FORM AND EXECUTION OF THE 2022 NOTE 

SECTION 4.01. Form of the 2022 Note. Subject to the provisions of the 
Resolution, the 2022 Note in registered form, together with the form of assignment therefor and 
the Trustee's Certificate of Authentication, shall be in substantially the form set forth in the 
Project Finance Agreement. 

SECTION 4.02. Execution and Authentication of the 2022 Note.  Pursuant 
to the provisions of Section 2.3 of the Resolution, and this Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution 
either the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson or the Executive Director of the Authority is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute, by such person's manual or facsimile signature, the 2022 Note 
in the name of the Authority and the corporate seal (or a facsimile thereof) shall be thereunto 
affixed, imprinted, engraved or otherwise reproduced thereon. The Secretary of the Authority is 
hereby authorized and directed to attest, by manual or facsimile signature, the execution of the 
2022 Note. The Trustee is hereby authorized to authenticate, by manual or facsimile signature, 
the 2022 Note and to deliver the same to or upon the order of the Authority in such amounts and 
at such times as the Trustee shall be directed in writing by an Authorized Officer. 
 

ARTICLE V 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

SECTION 5.01. State Covenant.   In accordance with the provisions of the 
Act the State has pledged and agreed with the owners of Bonds of the Authority that the State 
will not alter or limit the rights vested by the Act in the Authority to finance or refinance the 
acquisition, construction, maintenance, operation, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation and 
improvement of facilities and to fulfill the terms of any agreement made with or for the benefit 
of the holders of bonds of the Authority or with any public corporation or person with reference 
to such project or part thereof, or in any way impair the rights and remedies of the Authority's 
bondholders, until the 2022 Note and all costs and expenses in connection with any action or 
proceeding by or on behalf of such holders, are fully met and discharged. The State has further 
pledged and agreed with the holders of any bonds issued by the Authority pursuant to the Act 
that the State will not alter or limit the rights of the Authority to establish and collect rates, rents, 
fees or other charges to pay expenses in connection with the System. 

 
SECTION 5.02.  Authorized Officers. The Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, 

Secretary, and Treasurer of the Authority, and the Executive Director, are each hereby authorized 
to deliver and execute in the name and on behalf of the Authority any agreement, certificate, 
opinion, record or other document required by or authorized pursuant to the Resolution or this 
Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution in connection with the issuance of the 2022 Note. 
 

SECTION 5.03.  When Effective. The Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution 
shall become effective immediately upon the filing with the Trustee of a copy hereof certified by 
an Authorized Officer. 

 



-5-  

I N  WITNESS WHEREOF, LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER 
AUTHORITY has caused this resolution to be executed by its Executive Director and its 
corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, attested by its Secretary, all as of the day and year first 
above written. 

 
 

[SEAL]  LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER 
AND SEWER AUTHORITY  

 
 
 
 
Attest: ____________________________                       
            Colleen Murphy, Secretary 
    

 
By:  ____________________________          
         Jason Molino, Executive Director 

  
 
 


	08.31.22 - Agenda packet 2.pdf
	08.31.22 - Agenda.pdf
	Agenda
	August 31, 2022 at 8:00 am
	Watershed Education Center (Vitale Park)
	Lakeville, NY 14480

	7.20.22 Minutes.pdf
	Operations and Capital Report

	July 2022 Financial Report.pdf
	2022-27 - RESOLUTION CLASSIFYING THE LEICESTERYORK REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY EXPANSION PROJECT IN LIVINGSTON COUNTY AS A TYPE I ACTION, ESTABLISHING LEAD AGENCY AND DETERMINING THE SIGNIFIC.pdf
	Part 1 EAF Signed.pdf
	Parts 2 & 3 EAF.pdf
	2022-08-23 - WIIA application - Regional Water Expansion Supply project.pdf
	2022-28 - RESOLUTION TO APPROVE (A) SUBMITTING AN APPLIATION FOR A GRANT AND (B) A TWELFTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 2022-28
	ARTICLE II
	SECTION 2.03.  Date of the 2022 Note.  The 2022 Note shall be dated the date the 2022 Note closes with the E.F.C.

	2022-29 - AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SIGN AN INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT WITH PARTICIPATING MUNICIPALITIES – LEICESTER-YORK REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY EXPANSION PROJECT.pdf
	2022-30 - AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SIGN AN INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT WITH LIVINGSTON COUNTY – LEICESTER-YORK REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY EXPANSION PROJECT .pdf
	2022-31 - RESOLUTION CLASSIFYING THE LAKEVILLE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PHOSPHORUS REMOVAL PROJECT AND GROVELAND WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS IN LIVINGSTON COUNTY AS TYPE I.pdf
	2022-08-23 - WIIA application - Lakeville Phosphorus Removal Project and Groveland Improvements .pdf
	2022-32 - RESOLUTION TO APPROVE (A) SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION FOR GRANTS AND (B) A THIRTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION .pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 2022-32
	ARTICLE II
	SECTION 2.03. Date of the 2022 Note.  The 2022 Note shall be dated the date the 2022 Note closes with the E.F.C.


	Bills.pdf
	Operations Report 8.31 2022.pdf
	Sheet1

	Capital Report 8.31.2022.2.pdf
	Sheet1


